
Civic Centre, Windmill Street, Gravesend Kent DA12 1AU

South Thames Gateway 
Building Control Joint 

Committee

Members of the South Thames Gateway Building Control Joint Committee of Gravesham 
Borough Council are summoned to attend a meeting to be held at the Usually held at the Civic 
Centre in Gravesend on Thursday, 12 March 2020 at 10.00 am when the business specified in 
the following agenda is proposed to be transacted.

S Walsh
Service Manager (Communities)

Agenda

Part A
Items likely to be considered in Public

1. Apologies for absence 

2. Minutes (Pages 3 - 6)

3. Declarations of Interest 

4. To consider whether any items in Part A of the agenda should be 
considered in private or any items in Part B in public 

5. Monitoring Report: December 2019 to February 2020 (Pages 7 - 16)

The report updates the Joint Committee on the current forecast for the 
2019/2020 financial year and gives details against the progress of the 
objectives of the Business Plan 2019/2020.

6. Schedule of Meetings 2020/21 (Pages 17 - 20)

This report sets out the proposed meetings schedule for the 2020/21 
municipal year.



7. Any other business which by reason of special circumstances the 
Chairman is of the opinion should be considered as a matter of urgency. 

8. Exclusion 
To move, if required, that pursuant to Section 100A (4) of the Local 
Government Act 1972 that the public be excluded from any items 
included in Part B of the agenda because it is likely in view of the nature 
of business to be transacted that if members of the public are present 
during those items, there would be disclosure to them of exempt 
information as defined in Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Act.

Part B
Items likely to be considered in private

None

Members

Cllr John Burden (Chair)

Councillors: Tim Gibson
Jane Chitty
Ian Thomas

Substitutes: To be notified



1

South Thames Gateway Building Control Joint Committee 

Thursday, 05 December 2019    10:00am 

Present: 

Cllrs: John Burden (Chair)
Jane Chitty 
Tim Gibson 

Janine Boughton Director, STG Building Control Partnership   
Kevin Burbidge Director (Planning & Development), Gravesham Borough 

Council 
Lisa Fillery 
Dawn Hudd

Director of Finance and Procurement, Canterbury City Council
Assistant Director Physical and Cultural Regeneration, Medway 
Council

James Freeman 
Maria Short  

Head of Planning Services, Swale Borough Council
Democratic Services Officer, Canterbury City Council 

Gemma Dand Technical & Administration Manager STG Building Control 
Partnership   

Ben Clarke Committee & Scrutiny Assistant (GBC)  

15. Apologies for absence 

An apology of absence was received from Cllr Ian Thomas (Canterbury). 

16. Minutes 

The minutes of the meeting held on Thursday, 19 September 2019 was agreed as a correct 
record and signed by the Chairman. 

17. Declarations of Interest 

No declarations of interest. 

18. Monitoring Report - September 2019 to November 2019 

The Director of the STGBCP introduced the report which updated the Committee on the 
current forecast for the 2019/20 financial year and gave details of the progress against the 
objectives of the Business Plan 2019/2020. 

The Director of the STGBCP further briefed the Committee on the additional training 
undertaken by staff, performance statistics and other key information from the report. 

The Committee noted the information provided and raised the following comments: 

 The report indicated that it was the correct decision to ensure the staff were given 
high levels of training and it was vital to retain those trained up staff members to 
maintain the workload of the Partnership   

Page 3 Agenda Item 2



South Thames Gateway Building Control Joint Committee 5.12.2019

2

 The public needed to understand that  there was a cost implication involved for 
carrying out the work 

The Director of the STGBCP advised that the public pay a regularisation fee based on the 
type of work that was being done, i.e. a specific fee for a two story building compared to a 
single storey. The fees were set as part of the charges legislation in accordance with the 
CIPFA guide and in line with the charges across Kent so that STG did not price itself out of 
the market. At the previous meeting it was agreed that the Partnerships fees would increase 
by 2% in January 2020. 

The Director of the STGBCP updated Members on an email that had been circulated to 
customers asking them to pay an additional £150 to receive extra information on their 
premises. The email was from the liquidators and following the Local Authority Building 
Control (LABC) body carrying out a review, they found that the records that the customers 
would receive upon payment were no different to the information that could be easily 
accessed by an FOI request, at no charge, from the Partnership. The fact that customers did 
not need to pay that additional £150 fee couldn’t be broadcasted on STG’s website due to 
legal issues however the administration team were instructed to inform customers that they 
didn’t believe they would receive any new information from that payment. 

The Chair questioned whether or not the truth could be told to customers without any legal 
repercussions. An example being: ‘the LABC had carried out trials of paying the additional 
payment and had received no new records or information in addition to what was already 
available’. 

Following further discussion, it was agreed that it would be better if the message regarding 
the irrelevant payment was broadcasted through the four Councils’ Communication teams. 
The Chair advised that he would ask Gravesham’s Communications Manager to contact the 
Director of the STG Building Control Partnership to agree the specific wording regarding the 
additional payment being irrelevant and then circulate the response to the four local 
authorities. Once a common theme and wording was agreed then it could be pushed out to 
the public to make them aware. 
 
In response to a query regarding the Reserves, the Director of the STGBCP explained that 
£40,000 had been contributed to the Reserves as currently there wasn’t any funds in there 
due to it all being used to reduce the budget overspend last year. The Chair was happy with 
the funds being earmarked for the Reserves.  

Resolved that the Committee noted the information contained within the report. 

19. Exclusion 

Resolved that pursuant to Section 100A (4) of the Local Government Act 1972 that 
the public be excluded from any items included in Part B of the agenda because it is 
likely in view of the nature of business to be transacted that if members of the public 
are present during those items, there would be disclosure to them of exempt 
information as defined in Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Act.

20. South Thames Gateway Building Control Business Plan & Delivery Plan 
2020-2023 

Page 4



South Thames Gateway Building Control Joint Committee 5.12.2019

3

The Director of the STGBCP sought the Committee’s agreement to the South Thames 
Gateway Building Control Partnership’s Business Plan and Delivery Plan for 2020-2023 
(dated 01 October 2019, Version 2). 

Following presentation of the draft Business Plan at Joint Committee on 19 September 2019 
the Plan has now been circulated for comments and Members were asked to agree any 
revisions. 

The Director of the STGBCP outlined key points from the report and directed Members’ 
attention to the Business Plan and Delivery Plan attached at appendices 1 and 2 
respectively. 

The Chair questioned if it was still the intention of the Director of the STGBCP to attend 
Overview Scrutiny Committee’s at the four local authorities to further explain her report to 
Members.  

The following points were made in relation to scrutiny: 

 The Director of the STG Building Control Partnership advised that she had only 
attended the Overview Scrutiny Committee at Gravesham

 The Director (Planning & Development) added that the report was going to Chief 
Executive’s Briefing on 16 December 2019 and then would be submitted to the 
Cabinet meeting in January 2020.  It is currently planned that it would then go to 
Overview Scrutiny.  The Chair, in his Role as Gravesham Leader, advised it should 
not automatically go toe Overview Scrutiny but it should remain subject to call in. Cllr 
Chitty explained that she would also take the report to her Cabinet after which it 
could be subject to call in by the Overview Scrutiny Committee 

 The Director of Finance and Procurement, Canterbury City Council stated that the 
report had been approved by her internal management team; CCC had transitioned 
back to the Committee System governance arrangement which meant there was no 
scrutiny structure available 

The Chair queried how much the STGBCP charged for their pre-application information and 
how STG could be promoted more, especially with all of the changes that were going to be 
made with building and fire regulations 
 
The Director of the STGBCP explained that: 

 Customers could not be charged for the first hour, any time spent after the first hour 
was charged a set hourly rate. The usual practice was to inform the customer that 
they will be charged a certain amount and the amount they paid upfront  will be 
reflected in their submitted application cost 

 The fire regulations were very important and the intention was to encourage more of 
the partnerships’ senior building control surveyors to become qualified as LABC level 
6 building control surveyors. Currently the partnership and one other authority in Kent 
has a surveyor trained at this level for fire 

 Staff at the STGBCP would need to be incentivised to go for their higher level 
qualification at level 6 in the future as there is a lower pass rate at this level (70%) 
and it requires significant work

Page 5



South Thames Gateway Building Control Joint Committee 5.12.2019

4

 The new Customer Facing Strategy looked at making it more efficient for customers 
to contact the STGBCP; an online chat facility was being investigated for customers 
to be able to contact officers more easily but funds needed to be identified for the 
Strategy first 

Following some concern from the Head of Planning Services, Swale Borough Council 
regarding budgetary increases for the STGBCP over the forecast three year period when 
Council’s may be looking for overall savings during the same period.  A robust discussion 
was held on the benefits the Partnership brought to each authority, how much money they 
saved, the need to remind each authorities Members of the total money saved when 
compared to hiring their own building surveyors and all the associated costs. 

The Director of the STGBCP advised that she had spoken with other local authorities that 
had expressed an interest in joining the Partnership however their cases would be reviewed 
individually and any further partners would be considered on a different basis than 
previously. The Assistant Director Physical and Cultural Regeneration, Medway Council 
suggested the idea of asking any new partners to contribute something extra to the total 
overhead of the Partners which would help meet costs and still be a cheaper option for 
future partners. 

The Director (Planning & Development), Gravesham Borough Council assured the Chair that 
his Management Team was happy with the report and, subject to Cabinet approval; it could 
be incorporated into the Medium Term Financial Plan without a problem. 

Following a further discussion on the need to re-educate Councillors across the four local 
authorities of the importance of the Partnership, it was agreed that officers would create a 
simple report with statistics showing how much money the Partnership had saved each of 
their respective Councils. The reports could then be utilised by officers in whatever way they 
chose to properly inform their Members of the Partnerships money saving capability. 

Resolved that Members agreed to approve the updated version of the Business Plan, now 
incorporating any comments received, and refer it to the Cabinet or relevant Committee of 
each partner authority to approve the Final Draft Business Plan.

21. Any other business which by reason of special circumstances the 
Chairman is of the opinion should be considered as a matter of urgency. 

The Chair felt that a smaller room was much better for the South Thames Gateway Building 
Control Joint Committee meetings and it was agreed that the remaining meetings to be held 
at Gravesham for the financial year would be held in CS1.  

In conclusion, the Chair wished officers and Members a Merry Christmas. 

Close of meeting 

The meeting ended at 10:57am. 

Page 6



SOUTH THAMES GATEWAY BUILDING CONTROL           
JOINT COMMITTEE

12 March 2020

MONITORING REPORT
DECEMBER 2019 TO FEBRUARY 2020

Report from: Janine Boughton, Director, South Thames Gateway Building Control 
Partnership

Summary

The report updates the Joint Committee on the current forecast for the 2019/2020 
financial year and gives details against the progress of the objectives of the 
Business Plan 2019/2020.

1. Budget and Policy Framework

1.1. The Joint Committee requires the preparation of monitoring reports to be 
reported to the Officer Steering Group and Joint Committee.

2. Director’s Comments

2.1. This report gives a further overview of the position of the budget and the 
progression against the objectives shown in the Business Plan 2019/2020.

2.2. For years, local authorities barely had a handful of reversions. Last year this 
changed but not because approved inspectors became more willing to report 
non-compliance.  A substantial amount of time has been spent investigating 
and contacting owners to advise on the situation and the options available to 
them.  

2.3. Site inspections are ongoing on these applications and to assist with the 
workload, a dedicated surveyor has been allocated one to two days per week.  
The surveyor will be concentrating within the Canterbury area where the 
majority of the reversion work resides. 
 

2.4. Continued development of the IT system is essential to progress agile and 
remote working and improve our services to our customers.  We are working 
with our back-office supplier to resolve the delays in the software development 
to enable delivery of the online inspection booking and enhancements to the 
mobile app.

Page 7 Agenda Item 5



2.5. Over this quarter we have seen a significant increase in our market share, 
which has risen by 5% to 71% compared to the same quarter last year. A 
contributing factor will be the issues experienced in the market with approved 
inspectors during Q1 and Q2 of 2019.  

2.6. Together with Medway’s legal team the partnership successfully prosecuted a 
builder for contraventions of the Building Regulations.  The case was heard at 
Medway Magistrates’ Court in January 2020 and the case was proved in the 
builders’ absence.

3. Delivery Plan Update

3.1. The Business Plan has now progressed through each Council’s Cabinet and 
Committee and has been approved so that the contributions element can now 
be included in their financial plan.  

3.2. The number of building regulation applications remains around 4% lower than 
last year, and the income generated from these and commencements of new 
work is approximately 23.6% above the income at the end of February last 
year. Savings have been made in the supplies and services budget and 
together with additional income generated through the reversion work, we 
remain predicting a balanced budget at the end of year.

3.3. Members will note that work on reversions has concluded with regards to 
investigation and notification by the technical administration and surveying 
teams to affected owners.  Of the 706 initial notices:

 285 owners arranged site visits for a surveyor to ascertain stage of works 
reached and to be advised on their options moving forward

 174 owners have chosen to regularise the work (61.05% reversion rate)
 230 applications have been established as works having not commenced
 191 owners have not responded to the notifications

3.4. Time analysis to the end of November indicates for the administration function 
approximately 1000 hours were attributed to processing reversions and for 
inspections approximately 700 hours.   To assist with the ongoing inspection 
work a dedicated surveyor has been allocated one to two days per week to 
progress the active reversion applications within the Canterbury area, where 
the majority of reversion work resides.

3.5. The income generated by reversions is around £165,000 with a potential 
income on the outstanding responses of around £67,000. An estimate on the 
time element will need to be undertaken on the current reversions to evaluate 
the amount required to be accrued to the next financial year in order to cover 
ongoing work on these applications.  

3.6. Whilst an assessment on our time and a charge payable is carried out on the 
information provided, where at the end of the project our time is significantly 

Page 8



less that originally estimated a refund is required to be provided.  An estimate 
based on potential refunds will be accrued.

3.7. Market share for quarter three is 71% which is a 5% improvement compared to 
the same quarter last year.  Our overall market share for the year is currently at 
69% which sees a small increase of 1% on market retention.

3.8. Harwood remains our main competitor in the STG area, with an estimated 
overall market share of 8%.  With the acquisition of Oculus Building 
Consultancy by Assent Building Control in April 2019 they are now reputed to 
be the largest building control provider.  Assent are now our second major 
competitor with an estimated market share of 5%.  

3.9. With the collapse of Aedis approved inspector in June 2019 some former 
surveyors formed a new company, Vantage Building Control Ltd.  A number of 
initial notices which had not commenced with Aedis were cancelled and a new 
notice submitted by Vantage.  We estimate that they currently have 2% of the 
STG market area.

3.10. We have continued the development of our back-office system which saw the 
development of a folder structure within our document management facility.  A 
standard set of folders will now be generated on the creation of an application 
which will significantly improve the time taken to locate and access plans and 
correspondence on large developments where substantial volumes of 
documentation are submitted.

3.11. Whilst progress has been made with the development of an online inspection 
booking facility and enhancements to the mobile app, final release has been 
hampered by delays within Tascomi’s development team.  

3.12. In August 2019 Idox acquired Tascomi to retain their status as the leading 
provider of software to local authorities, remove their main competitor as well 
as obtain the ability to move their products to an agile/cloud environment.  One 
of the concerns we expressed at the time was how this would impact on our 
service delivery/improvements and I feel that we are starting to feel the effects 
of this takeover.

3.13. The duty to enforce Building Regulations is contained in the Building Act 1984, 
Section 91 and local authorities have a responsibility to enforce the Building 
Regulations in their area.  Whilst our enforcement powers enable us to take 
legal action we always endeavour to seek a resolution.  

3.14. In January 2020, the partnership with the assistance of Medway’s legal 
department successfully prosecuted a builder for contraventions of the building 
regulations.  The extension construction had a number of contraventions:

 Roof was not fixed to the main building correctly
 Manhole have been built over as opposed to being relocated as 

requested and no build-over agreement obtained

Page 9



 Roof tiles were unsuitable of the pitch of the roof
 Incorrectly insulated particularly within roof and floor
 Dangerous electrical installation and not compliant with manufacturer’s 

guidance

3.15. Despite numerous requests by the surveyor the builder failed to respond or 
rectify the works which resulted in legal proceedings.  The case was heard at 
Medway Magistrates’ Court and the case was proved in the builders’ absence.  
The court fined the builder £10,000 and ordered him to pay costs of £841 and a 
victim surcharge of £170, totalling £11,011.

4. Use of Resources Overview

4.1. A number of technical seminars have been held through December and 
January for surveyors on retrofitting traditional buildings, avoiding heat loss in 
buildings and air admittance for domestic properties.  To encourage 
participation and personal development, a schedule has been drawn up for 
surveyors, to present a specialised item at the monthly technical meeting.

4.2. A programme of in-house CPD seminars is currently being developed for staff 
and customers for 2020/2021.

4.3. PDR discussions have commenced with staff to align their training 
requirements for 2020/2021 with the objectives and actions agreed through the 
business plan. The PDR process is on track for all discussions to have taken 
place and paperwork recorded by the end of March.

5. Financial Review

5.1. The budget monitoring sheet attached at Appendix 1 shows a balanced budget 
with pressure on the building regulation income being mitigated through the 
increase regularisation income from reversions.

6. Performance Risks/Emerging Issues

6.1. As mentioned earlier, where owners have chosen to regularise their work which 
has had to be reverted back to the local authority a substantial amount of time 
will be required carrying out inspections and resolving issues on site.  Whilst 
the allocation of a dedicated surveyor will look to mitigate some of the pressure, 
the volume of work entailed may have an impact on performance targets.

6.2. A delay in the development of a number of new enhancements by Tascomi 
may prevent several of the objectives from the Business Plan being delivered.  
The acquisition of Tascomi by Idox may have further reaching implications on 
the partnership, given the history of this provider, in greater development costs 
and increasing annual charges.

6.3. There is a potential threat of the new larger approved inspector offering 
enhanced salary packages to try and tempt surveyors across from the public 

Page 10



sector.  The new assistant building control surveyors are also vulnerable having 
been trained up and then being enticed away.  

7. Data Quality

7.1. A desk top exercise was carried with management team members to verify that 
our business continuity plan is effective and fulfilling its purpose.  The 
hypothetical scenario included a fire in the adjacent building to our main office, 
which then spread to our building in the early hours, thereby testing both our 
Out of Hours and emergency contacts as well.

7.2. The benefits of our delivery model meant we are able to continue to deliver with 
only slight impact on customers and inconvenience to staff.  Our plan is 
reviewed each quarter to adjust for any procedural or contact changes and a 
disaster scenario will be carried out yearly.

8. Performance

6.1 Details of the performance statistics are shown in Appendix 2. Our adoption of 
new monitoring procedures to overcome the resourcing issues, due to 
increased volumes of reversions, has shown a significant improvement over the 
last quarter and we anticipate that continuing onto the fourth quarter.

9. Financial Implications

9.1. There are no direct legal implications as a result of this report.

10. Legal Implications

10.1. There are no direct legal implications as a result of this report.  

11. Risk Management

11.1. There is always the possibility that income at the end of the financial year  will 
be below expectation, in which case a call on additional contributions from each 
of the partner authorities would be required. 

12. Recommendation

12.1. Members are asked to note the contents of the report.

13. Suggested Reason for Decision

13.1. The Constitution requires the Joint Committee to monitor the progress of the 
Partnership. 

Page 11



Lead officer contact

Janine Boughton, Director, South Thames Gateway Building Control Partnership, 
Foord Annexe, Eastgate House, High Street, Rochester, ME1 1EW
Tel: 01634 331600
E-mail: janine.boughton@stgbc.org.uk 

Background papers
None

Page 12

mailto:janine.boughton@stgbc.org.uk


Appendix 1

February 2020 Monitoring Statement for STG Building Control Partnership

Subjective Description Current Year 
Budget

Total Actuals 
and 

Commitments 
Year to Date

Managers 
Forecast

Admin Staff    1,460,419 1,208,770 1,460,419

BC Consultants 0  0

Staff overtime 15,000 6,386 10,000

Redundancy 0 (20,000) (20,000)

VDU/Eye Tests 200 17 34

Medical Referrals 250 205 410

Clothing Allowance 2,000 826 1,295

Call Out Fees 25,000 12,476 20,000

Employee Related Insurance 1,601  1,601

Staff Training 15,000 4,369 6,000

Staff Training  STG Consultancy 5,000 1,044 1,044

Staffing 1,524,470 1,214,093 1,480,803
Repairs Maint Buildings Gen 4,000 3,140 3,800

Electricity 4,900 8,882 8,882

Gas 2,300 2,155 2,155

Rents External 20,500 20,520 20,520

Off-site storage 5,000 3,956 4,784

Non Domestic Rates 12,000 10,925 10,925

Water & Sewerage Charges 700 53 53

Contract Cleaning 1,300  800

Window Cleaning 200  100

Trade Refuse 2,000 658 1,800

Premises Insurance 1,000 633 633

Premises 53,900 50,922 54,452
Public Trans   1,500 892 1,000

Park Fees     16,240 11,955 13,000

Staff travel -Leased Mileage 350 291 350

Casual User 100 607 700

Essential User 50,500 42,791 48,500

Transport 68,690 56,536 63,550
Equip/Furn/Mats 400 321 375

Equip Rental Leases Licences 8,000 12,408 12,540

Equip Annual Maintenance 400 265 300

Books/Pubs/News0 4,000 3,069 3,200

Bottled Water Coolers 350 322 400

Refreshments at Meetings 500 136 250

Printing Stat & Gen Off Exps 150  100

Printing 4,500 2,052 3,000

Page 13



Subjective Description Current Year 
Budget

Total Actuals 
and 

Commitments 
Year to Date

Managers 
Forecast

Consultancy Public Protect 100  0

Printing       Public Protect 4,500 34 800

Stationery 3,200 1,177 1,500

Stationery     STG Consultancy 100 20 50

General Office Expenses 100 78 100

HR Approved Agency 0 1,242 1,242

Agency Staff Security 1,200 910 1,200

Consultants Fees 3,000  2,000

Consultants Fees Chargeable 500  0

Consultants Fees Non Chargeable 3,000 150 300

Consult Fees   Part P Electric 3,300 2,645 3,300

Consultant Fees STG Consultancy 8,000 5,176 5,500

Land Registry Fees 1,000 523 750

Mobile Phone 12,000 3,911 11,000

Postage 7,000 5,295 6,000

Computer Hardware 10,000 1,772 3,000

Computer Software 28,424 17,430 21,000

Subsistence 350 314 550

Subscriptions 6,200 5,769 6,200

All Risks Insurance 1,500  1,500

Officials Indemnity Insurance 8,375  8,375

Publicity 1,500  500

Publicity      STG Consultancy 300  0

Publicity      Public Protect 500  350

Miscellaneous Expenses 0  0

Contribution to Reserves 0  92,132

Contribution to I.T. Reserves 0  50,000

Contributions to Bad Debt Prov 5,000  50,000

Supplies & Services 127,449 65,021 287,514
Fin Mgmt SLA 8,100 8,100 8,100

Exchequer SLA 5,200 5,200 5,200

HR SLA 3,416 3,416 3,416

Org Dev SLA 2,534 2,534 2,534

Adv & Cons SLA 954 954 954

HR Ops SLA 742 742 742

HR Resource SLA 962 962 962

H&S SLA 1,002 1,002 1,002

IT Comp SLA 11,430 11,435 11,435

Legal SLA 10,000 125 10,000

Support Services 44,340 34,470 44,345
Conts from OLAs (299,866) (298,497) (299,866)

Contributions From Reserves 0 0 0

Non-Med Oth BodNon-Med Oth Bod 0 0 0

Page 14



Subjective Description Current Year 
Budget

Total Actuals 
and 

Commitments 
Year to Date

Managers 
Forecast

Contributions from Partner 
Authorities

(299,866) (298,497) (299,866)

Fees & Charges General (12,000) (8,934) (9,000)

Land Charges Fees 0  0

Building Control Fees (1,286,653) (1,210,418) (1,251,798)

BldCtFeeConsultSTG Consultancy (55,000) (62,860) (63,000)

Bldg Ctrl      Regularisation (160,000) (276,022) (280,000)

Bldg Cont Fees Part P (5,000) (26,902) (27,000)

BldCt Fees Part P Electric (330)  0

Miscellaneous Receipts 0  0

Other Income (1,518,983) (1,585,135) (1,630,798)
    
Total Expenditure 1,818,849 1,421,042 1,930,664

    
Total Income (1,818,849) (1,883,632) (1,930,664)

    
Total Recharges 0 0 0

    
Total Net 0 (462,590) 0

Page 15



APPENDIX 2

 

% plans 
checked 

within 15-18 
days

% 
determined 

within 5 
weeks /or 2 

months

% completion 
certificates sent 
within 5 days of 

completion 

% validating 
applications 

within  3 
working days

% validating 
applications 

within  5 
working days

% property 
searches - 
within 10 

working days

2019-20 Target 77%
Target 
100% Target 80% Target 80% Target 85% Target 80%

Apr 96.55 100.00 100.00 50.73 92.68 100.00
May 88.70 100.00 100.00 58.76 97.94 100.00
Jun 94.31 100.00 94.77 81.94 99.12 96.88
Jul 80.16 100.00 100.00 84.05 100.00 96.88
Aug 66.34 100.00 100.00 36.36 88.24 100.00
Sep 74.22 100.00 100.00 85.51 98.60 96.55
Oct 95.15 100.00 99.02 91.36 99.59 93.02
Nov 77.50 100.00 98.80 97.86 99.47 100.00
Dec 91.45 * 99.43 100.00 100.00 100.00
Jan 93.26 * 100.00 97.82 99.13 100.00
Feb       
Mar       

Cumulative 85.76 100.00 99.20 78.44 97.48 98.33

* unable to provide data until 8 weeks following quarter end

Notes

Q1/Q2
With the unprecedented failure of a number of Approved Inspectors (AIs) unable to obtain or renew 
their insurance cover the company’s in question were no longer able to carry out their function.  This 
initially has impacted on the technical administration team who have been notifying and 
communicating with the affected owners.  With staff numbers already reduced through August due to 
planned staff leave, this unexpected workload has impacted on performance, averaging 3.77 working 
days for validating of applications.

Q3
Reversions have also impacted on the surveyors through August with plan checking averaging 14.24 
working days with 7 of the 101 plans checked outside this timescale.  September was still impacted 
by reversion inspections impacting on plan checking, which averaged 15.6 working days with 3 of the 
128 plans checked outside this timescale. 

Page 16



Classification: Public
Key Decision: No

Gravesham Borough Council

Report to: South Thames Gateway Building Control Joint Committee

Date: 12 March 2020

Reporting officer: Lauren Wallis, Clerk to the Committee

Subject: SCHEDULE OF MEETINGS 2020/21

Purpose and summary of report: 
This report sets out the proposed meetings schedule for the 2020/21 municipal year. 

Recommendations:
1. That the Joint Committee a) agree the timetable of meetings for the 2020/21 

municipal year (as set out in paragraph 3.3 of the report) and b) agree to select 
Canterbury City Council to provide a secretary to the joint committee for the 2020/21 
municipal year.

1. Budget and Policy Framework

1.1 The Constitution for the South Thames Gateway Building Control Joint Committee 
specifies that the timetable shall be adopted at the Annual General Meeting.

2. Background

2.1 Canterbury, Gravesham, Medway and Swale Councils have all agreed to delegate 
their respective building control functions to the Joint Committee. This report 
presents the proposed dates for 2020/21 in advance of the Annual General 
Meeting.

3. Schedule of Meetings

3.1 The Constitution for the South Thames Gateway Building Control Joint Committee 
specifies that the schedule of meetings shall be agreed at the Annual General 
Meeting.

3.2 The Joint Committee is being asked to consider a programme of meetings for the 
2020/21 municipal year in advance of a decision being made at the Annual 
General Meeting in June 2020, in order to provide some certainty for Members, 
and the Partner Authorities, on the schedule of meetings during 2020/21.

Page 17 Agenda Item 6



2

3.3 The following dates are proposed, with meetings to be held at Canterbury City 
Council; all meetings will commence at 10am.

 Thursday 18 June 2020 (AGM)
 Thursday 17 September 2020 
 Thursday 3 December 2020
 Thursday 11 March 2021

4. Financial Implications

4.1 There are no financial implications arising from this report.

5. Legal Implications

5.1 The Joint Committee was established pursuant to powers under: -

 Local Government Act 1972 – sections 101, 102, 111, 112 and 113 
 Local Government Act 2000 – sections 2, 19 and 20 
 Regulations made under these acts.

5.2 The arrangements for this joint committee have been designed to ensure 
compliance with the Local Authorities (Functions and 
Responsibilities) (England) Regulations 2000 and the Local Authorities 
(Arrangements for the Discharge of Functions) (England) Regulations 2000, which 
set out the functions that should be carried out by Council (or one of its 
committee) and functions that can be carried out by the Executive.  Building 
control is a function of the Executive or Cabinet and can be discharged by the 
Joint Committee and those functions have been delegated by the Partners 
Authorities’ Executives. By law, two elements of the service cannot be executive 
functions, namely staffing matters and enforcement activity by Building Control, 
and these have been delegated to the Joint Committee by the Partner Authorities' 
respective Full Councils.

6. Risk Management

6.1 There are no risk management implications arising from this report.

7. Background Papers

7.1 There are no background papers pertaining to this report.

Page 18



IMPLICATIONS APPENDIX 1
     

Legal There are no legal implications arising from this report.

Finance and Value 
for Money 

There are no financial implications arising from this report.

Risk Assessment There are no risk management implications arising from this report.

A data protection impact assessment (DPIA) should be carried out at the start of 
any major project involving the use of personal data or if you are making a 
significant change to an existing process. 

a. Does the project/change being recommended through this paper involve the 
processing of personal data or special category data or criminal offence data? 
A definition of each type of data can be found on the Information 
Commissioner’s Office website via the above links.

b. If yes to question a, have you completed and attached a DPIA including Data 
Protection Officer advice?
N/A

Data Protection 
Impact Assessment

c. If no to question b, please seek advice from your nominated DPIA assessor or 
the Information Governance Team at gdpr@medway.gov.uk.
N/A

a. Does the decision being made or recommended through this paper have 
potential to cause adverse impact or discriminate against different groups in the 
community? If yes, please explain answer.
No

b. Does the decision being made or recommended through this paper make a 
positive contribution to promoting equality? If yes, please explain answer.
No

Equality Impact 
Assessment

In submitting this report, the Chief Officer doing so is confirming that they have 
given due regard to the equality impacts of the decision being considered, as noted 
in the table above

Corporate Plan      

Crime and Disorder N/A

Digital and website 
implications

N/A

Safeguarding 
children and 
vulnerable adults

N/A

Page 19

https://ico.org.uk/for-organisations/guide-to-the-general-data-protection-regulation-gdpr/key-definitions/what-is-personal-data/
https://ico.org.uk/for-organisations/guide-to-the-general-data-protection-regulation-gdpr/lawful-basis-for-processing/special-category-data/
https://ico.org.uk/for-organisations/guide-to-the-general-data-protection-regulation-gdpr/lawful-basis-for-processing/criminal-offence-data/
mailto:gdpr@medway.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	5 Monitoring Report: December 2019 to February 2020
	6 Schedule of Meetings 2020/21

